
Camberwell Community Council
Tuesday 31 January 2017

6.30 pm
Theatre Peckham, 221 Havil Street, Camberwell SE5 7SD

Community Council Forum meeting to follow at 7.00pm

Membership

Councillor Kieron Williams (Chair)
Councillor Octavia Lamb (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Peter John OBE
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Mark Williams
Councillor Ian Wingfield

 

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as well as 
the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, you 
may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building access, 
translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact
Tim Murtagh on 020 7525 7187  or email: tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk  

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 23 January 2017



Camberwell Community Council
Tuesday 31 January 2017

6.30 pm
Theatre Peckham, 221 Havil Street, Camberwell SE5 7SD

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME

2. APOLOGIES

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda.

5. MINUTES 1 - 6

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 
November 2016.

6. CLEANER GREENER SAFER: FUNDING REALLOCATION 7 - 12

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Michelle Normanly, Senior Project Manager, to present.

Councillors to consider the recommendations contained in the report.



Item No. Title Page No.

7. CLEANER GREENER SAFER CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017-18 13 - 22

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Michelle Normanly, Senior Project Manager, to present.

Councillors to consider the recommendations contained in the report.

Date:  23 January 2017



1

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 23 November 2016

CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL

MINUTES of the Camberwell Community Council held on Wednesday 23 November 
2016 at 7.00 pm at Employment Academy, 29 Peckham Road, London SE5 8UA 

PRESENT: Councillor Kieron Williams (Chair)
Councillor Octavia Lamb (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Sarah King
Councillor Mark Williams
Councillor Ian Wingfield

OTHER MEMBERS 
PRESENT:

 
Councillor Johnson Situ

OFFICER
SUPPORT:

 
Grace Semakula, Community Councils Development Officer
Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME

The chair welcomed councillors, residents and officers to the meeting.

2. APOLOGIES

There were apologies for absence from Councillors Dora Dixon-Fyle and Peter John.

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

There were none.

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Councillor Radha Burgess declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 9, as she is a resident 
of Grove Lane.

1
Agenda Item 5



2

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 23 November 2016

5. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2016 be agreed as a correct 
record of that meeting.

6. LOCAL POLICE UPDATE

Sergeant Andrew Sellings and PC Mark McKay gave an update on recent activities in the 
area.

7. HOW CAN WE CREATE MORE QUALITY JOBS IN CAMBERWELL?

Councillor Johnson Situ, cabinet member for business, employment and culture, 
introduced the item and gave an overview on businesses and the local economy.

He explained that in 2014 a commitment was made to support 5,000 residents into 
employment. So far more than 3,303 had been supported into jobs across the borough. 
Many roles had been created out of Section 106 investment. 

The council was also focused on apprenticeships and had supported more than 800 
apprenticeships. Employers were asked to commit to the London Living Wage and a one 
year placement as part of the apprentices programme.

Since 2010, there had been a rise in employment in the borough from 66% to 78% in 
2016. That meant about 42,000 more jobs in the borough compared to 2010.

The economic wellbeing strategy would be refreshed in the months ahead to set up the 
borough for the challenges that were ahead for Southwark.

Southwark Apprentices Programme

Frankie, a Southwark apprentice outlined her experience. She had started in the corporate 
programme’s team in 2014, had worked on a range of projects and got interested in 
project management. Earlier this year, she had completed the Prince 2 qualification and 
had received a lot of positive support as an apprentice. 

Jasdale, a former Southwark apprentice, explained that he had joined as a customer 
service apprentice in 2013 in the housing repairs section. He explained he used to be shy 
but following extensive training he had developed his skills and was offered a job with the 
council. Jasdale said that joining with other apprentices as part of a group gave all that 
group a network and support base and he still regularly met up with other people who 
joined the apprentices programme with him in 2013. He now worked in the Chief 
Executive’s office as part of the local economy team.

A Living Wage
Emma Kosmin, programme manager at the Living Wage Foundation gave a presentation.

2



3

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 23 November 2016

 The Living Wage Foundation is at the heart of a movement of organisations, 
businesses and people who believe a fair day’s work deserves a fair day’s pay

 The living wage is based on what employees need to make ends meet
 Employers voluntarily choose to pay it
 A separate rate for London reflects the higher costs of living in London
 It recognises that under-25s face the same living cost pressures as everyone else.

In Southwark, there were nearly one hundred accredited living wage employers. The plan 
was to keep adding to the list.

8. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS

Neighbourhoods fund 2017-18
The chair announced that the application process for the neighbourhoods fund was 
currently open and would run until 19 December 2016. Further information on the council 
website. Contact: grace.semakul@southwark.gov.uk or Tel. 020 7525 4928.

Southwark Wellbeing and Mental Health Strategy
The chair explained that the council and the local NHS were working together to develop a 
new strategy on wellbeing and mental health. A number of public events were planned to 
look at the issues involved. Contact: sophiegray@nhs.net 

The Employment Academy
Chris Deacon of Thames Reach, explained that Thames Reach was an organisation 
working across London with the aim of ending street homelessness. A key part of the 
strategy for preventing homelessness was to provide employment support. A lot of 
Thames Reach employment support services were run out of 29 Peckham Road (tonight’s 
meeting venue). One of the services was the “Step-Up Programme.” This was for people 
in work who wanted to work more hours or who were currently underpaid / experiencing in-
work poverty. This was an increasing problem as it could lead to people losing their 
accommodation through inability to pay rent. Contact: 
employmentacademy@thamesreach.org.uk

9. WORKSHOPS / BREAK-OUT SESSION ON THE THEME

The meeting went into workshops / break out sessions.

Workshop One – Promoting the living wage.
Workshop Two – Support available to help people into work.

10. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)

Becky Duffy, a local resident, made a deputation regarding the need for traffic control on 
Grove Lane particularly between Champion Park and Stories Mews. Becky explained that 
cars speeded in the area and that there had been a number of serious traffic accidents in 
the last couple of years including one fatality of a person crossing the road. She added 
that a recent traffic survey may not have been taken at a time of day indicative of the 
problem. During peak traffic volume hours of the day, the traffic tended to be slow but in 

3

mailto:grace.semakul@southwark.gov.uk
mailto:sophiegray@nhs.net
mailto:employmentacademy@thamesreach.org.uk


4

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 23 November 2016

the evenings things were very different. There was a 20mph limit on the road but some 
vehicles had lost control and ended up on their roof. Becky circulated pictures of a car that 
had flipped onto its roof in the area.

Councillor Sarah King thanked Ms Duffy for raising the issues in the deputation and said it 
was important to involve the police and get information from them on the accidents that 
had occurred.

Councillor Ian Wingfield, cabinet member for environment and the public realm, responded 
that the traffic survey had narrow hours and officers had been asked to do a further traffic 
survey with extended hours. The council had a safer routes to school programme and the 
two local schools nearby should be consulted and this area should be incorporated into 
that programme. Transport for London (TfL) would also be consulted as the road was a 
bus route. TfL’s input would be needed prior to any traffic intervention being made. Any 
options would be consulted on with local residents.

Councillors noted the deputation report and added that the issue of speeding buses in the 
area would be raised with Val Shawcross at the Greater London Assembly.

11. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

The following public questions were raised at the meeting:

Q1 “What is the time-frame and actions currently [being] taken by Southwark Council 
and Transport for London to reopen Camberwell, Walworth and Borough Road 
stations and is this part of a wider regeneration strategy?”

Councillor Mark Williams, cabinet member for regeneration and new homes, 
responded that the council had lobbied Transport for London (TfL) to reopen 
Camberwell Station. Good progress had been made and recently Mike Brown (TfL 
commissioner) visited the site to see the potential. Southwark and Lambeth councils 
were working on a business case jointly with TfL to reopen the station and ensure 
the Thameslink and other rail services stop there. Walworth Station was unlikely to 
be reopened due to its close proximity to residential properties. Reopening of 
Camberwell Station was key to wider regeneration plans including redevelopment of 
the bus station site and the opening up of walking and cycling routes.

Q2 The following written question had been submitted and was read out by the chair: 
“Since HSBC closed in Denmark Hill, there’s a permanent collection of old 
mattresses, blankets, garments all along the front of the former bank. What steps are 
being taken to ensure that the local authority and HSBC take some responsibility for 
providing accommodation for the homeless people who are sleeping here and for 
clearing up the eyesore?”

The chair asked for an officer response to the public question and for that to be 
forwarded to the author of the question.

4



5

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 23 November 2016

12. SECURE CYCLE PARKING (BIKE HANGAR)

NOTE: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Councillors considered the information contained in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the implementation of a cycle hangar in Bellenden Road be approved subject to 
the necessary statutory procedures.

13. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS

NOTE: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Councillors considered the information contained in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the following local traffic and parking amendments, detailed in the appendices to the 
report be approved, subject to the outcome of any necessary statutory consultation and 
procedures:

 Kerfield Place – to install new single yellow lines outside Nos. 8 and 9 and adjacent 
to the existing private parking areas to maintain access to off street parking and to 
improve inter-visibility with vehicles on Kerfield Place.

 Pelham Close – to install double yellow lines and a 10-metre parking bay to maintain 
access and to prevent obstructive and dangerous parking for all road users.

 Tower Mill Road – to install double yellow lines on junctions and adjacent to footway 
build-outs to maintain access and to prevent obstructive and dangerous parking, and 
to improve inter-visibility at junctions for all road users.

Regarding the Pelham Close decision, Councillor Sarah King commented that there was 
resident support for the scheme but asked that the concerns of two families with disabled 
members be considered by officers as they go forward.

14. COMMUNITY COUNCIL QUESTION TO COUNCIL ASSEMBLY

RESOLVED: 

That the decision on a question to be put to the March 2017 meeting of council 
assembly be deferred to the next meeting of the community council.

5



6

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 23 November 2016

The meeting ended at 8.55pm

CHAIR:

DATED:

6



Item No. 
6.

Classification:
Open

Date:
31 January 2017

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community 
Council

Report title: Cleaner Greener Safer: Funding Reallocation

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

Brunswick Park, Camberwell Green, South 
Camberwell

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATION

1. That Camberwell Community Council approve the re-allocation of a total of 
£28,300, as set out in Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2. Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) is part of the London Borough of Southwark’s 
capital programme. Between 2003 and 2016 £4.64m has been made available 
local residents in Camberwell to apply for awards to make their local area a 
better place to live. The programme attracts hundreds of proposals ranging from 
a few hundred pounds for bulb planting to brighten up open spaces to tens of 
thousands of pounds to create community gardens. These projects often 
introduce new ideas such as outdoor gyms in public spaces, community 
gardens, public art and energy saving projects which not only make the borough 
cleaner, greener and safer but greatly contribute to a sustainable public realm by 
involving residents in the funding process and in the delivery of projects.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

3. Appendix 1 highlights seven projects which have a total under spend of £28,300. 

4. It is recommended that the under spend of £7,700 from Glebe Estate playground 
(north), project reference [106436], is reallocated as part of the 2017-18 CGS 
programme. 

5. It is recommended that the under spend of £2,400 from Kevan House sunken 
garden, project reference [106417], is reallocated as part of the 2017-18 
programme.

6. It is recommended that the under spend of £1,000 from Champion Hill meadow 
verges, project reference [106445], is reallocated as part of the 2017-18 
programme.

7. It is recommended that the under spend of £2,700 from Champion Park raised 
beds, project reference [106587], is reallocated as part of the 2017-18 
programme.

8. It is recommended that the under spend of £10,000 from Glebe Estate 

7
Agenda Item 6



playground (south), project reference [107132], is reallocated as part of the 
2017-18 programme.

9. It is recommended that the under spend of £1,600 from Brandon 3 lighting 2016, 
project reference [107134], is reallocated as part of the 2017-18 programme. 

10. It is recommended that the under spend of £2,900 from Sunray Avenue planters, 
project reference [107138], is reallocated as part of the 2017-18 programme.

Policy implications

11. N/A

Community impact statement

12. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 
involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils take 
decisions on local matters including environmental improvement and community 
safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that 
affect the area.

13. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The CGS programme is an 
important tool in achieving community participation.

14. In fulfilling the above objectives that community councils have of bringing 
together and involving Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has 
also been give to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires 
the council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 
conduct;

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristics and those who do not share it;

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 
and those that do not share it.

15. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

16. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of:

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic;

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic;

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under-
represented.

  

8



Resource implications

17. This is the reallocation of existing CGS funding that was originally awarded in 
2014-2015, 2015-2016 and 2016-2017. CGS funding is devolved to community 
councils to spend on suitable projects.

  
18. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital costs of 

the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to organisations, the 
community council award letter will not include the professional fees which will 
be charged direct to project costs.

19. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding.  Projects 
that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be reported to community 
council and available budgets may be reallocated to other projects. Revenue 
costs not covered by maintenance or the contractual liability period will fall upon 
the asset owner. The business unit will be notified of the likely costs before the 
schemes proceeds, in order to secure permission to implement the scheme.

20. After the defects and liability period, or three year maintenance period in the 
case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the asset owner, 
for example housing, parks, highways, or in some cases external asset owners. 
Therefore, there are no revenue implications to the public realm projects 
business unit as a result of approving the proposed allocation.

21. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored 
and reported on as part of the overall capital programme.

Consultation 

22. All CGS projects require consultation with stakeholders, including the project 
applicant, local residents and tenants and residents associations where 
appropriate.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy

23. The allocation of the CGS capital fund is an executive function, delegated by the 
Leader to community councils.

24. Community councils are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the Act and 
executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader.

25. This report is recommending that the Camberwell Community Council approve 
the reallocation of available funds from the 2014-2015, 2015-2016 and 2016-
2017 programme as specified in Appendix 1 to the 2017-2018 capital funding 
allocation.  The power for this function is detailed in Part 3H paragraph 14 of the 
constitution which states that community councils have the power of “approval of 
the allocation of funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and revenue schemes of 
a local nature, using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet”.

26. The appropriate cabinet member approved the funding for the 2014-2015, 2015-
2016 and 2016-2017 programme by virtue of his powers under Part 3D 
paragraph 2 of the constitution. Where funding needs to be reallocated the 

9



community council approval being sought here is therefore 
the appropriate constitutional step in the process.

27. Community council members also have powers under paragraph 16 of Part 3H 
of the constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the local schemes.

28. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to the 
council’s equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report 
author has demonstrated how those duties need to be considered in the body of 
the report at paragraphs 12 to 16 in the community impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

29. The report requests the approval of Camberwell Community Council for the re-
allocation of a total of £28,300, originally allocated to projects under the CGS 
programme, as set out in Appendix 1. 

30. The strategic director of finance and governance notes that the re-allocation of 
the CGS funding will be contained within the existing departmental capital 
budgets for the CGS programme allocated as part of the council’s capital 
programme.

31. Staffing and any other costs connected with this recommendation to be 
contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Camberwell Community Council 
meeting held on Wednesday 12 
February 2014, Minutes item 12

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/mgAi.aspx?ID=31705

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

Camberwell Community Council 
meeting held on Wednesday 4 
February 2015, Minutes item 11

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/mgAi.aspx?ID=35653

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

Camberwell Community Council 
meeting held on Saturday 19 March 
2016, Minutes item 8

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/mgAi.aspx?ID=40226

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

10

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/mgAi.aspx?ID=31705
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/mgAi.aspx?ID=31705
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/mgAi.aspx?ID=35653
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/mgAi.aspx?ID=35653
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/mgAi.aspx?ID=40226
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/mgAi.aspx?ID=40226


APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Cleaner Greener Safer programme funding reallocation - 31 

January 2017

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Jason White, Group Manager – Network Development
Report Author Michelle Normanly, Senior Project Manager

Version Final
Dated 18 January 2017

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included

Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 18 January 2017

11



Camberwell Community Council
Cleaner Greener Safer programme
Funding reallocation - 31 January 2017

PROJECTS WITH UNDERSPENDS

Project name Year of 
Award

Approval 
date Ward Reason for under spend / reallocation Original 

award

Amount to be 
returned to 
Community 

Council / 
reallocated

106436 Glebe Estate playground (north) 2014 - 2015 29/01/2014 
and 

04/02/2015

Brunswick Park Project completed under budget. £20,650 £7,700

106417 Kevan House sunken garden 2014 - 2015 12/02/2014 
and 

04/02/2015

Camberwell Green Project completed under budget. £17,810 £2,400

106445 Champion Hill meadow verges 2014 - 2015 12/02/14 South Camberwell Project completed under budget. £5,200 £1,000
106587 Champion Park raised beds (Wolf and Ram sculptures) 2015 - 2016 04/02/2015 

and 
19/03/2016

South Camberwell Project completed under budget. £24,000 £2,700

107132 Glebe Estate playground (south) 2016 - 2017 19/03/2016 
and 

11/07/2016

Brunswick Park Project completed under budget. £63,206 £10,000

107134 Brandon 3 lighting 2016 2016 - 2017 19/03/16 Camberwell Green Project completed under budget. £7,800 £1,600
107138 Sunray Avenue planters 2016 - 2017 19/03/16 South Camberwell Project completed under budget. £9,000 £2,900
Camberwell Community Council £28,300

Brunswick Park £17,700
Camberwell Green £4,000
South Camberwell £6,600
Total available to be reallocated by ward £28,300

APPENDIX 1
12



Item No. 
7.

Classification:
Open

Date:
31 January 2017

Meeting Name:
Camberwell Community 
Council

Report title: Cleaner Greener Safer 2017/18: Capital Funding 
Allocation

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

Brunswick Park, Camberwell Green, South 
Camberwell

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATION

1. To approve the allocation of funds for the 2017-18 cleaner greener safer 
(CGS) capital programme in the Camberwell Community Council area from the 
list of applications set out in Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2. The council’s CGS capital programme has been running since 2003.
  
3. In the first fourteen years of the CGS programme, £34,153,000 has been 

allocated to community councils leading to 2,500 projects being approved. 

4. In the Camberwell Community Council area, £4,635,612 has been allocated to 
339 projects, 304 of which have been completed to date.

5. Examples of the types of projects that have been funded include:
 Parks, community gardens, landscaping, tree planting and wildlife areas
 Children’s playgrounds, youth facilities, ball courts and cycle tracks
 Lighting, security measures, pavements, streets, and tackling ‘grot spots’
 Grants to local groups to self-deliver projects.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

6. There is £268,571 available for the 2017-18 CGS capital programme for new 
projects in the Camberwell Community Council area.

7. Unallocated funding from previous years’ programmes will also be reallocated 
subject to approval in a separate report.

8. Eligible proposals must bring about a permanent improvement and make an 
area cleaner, greener or safer. 

9. Proposals with revenue costs, including salaries, costs for events, festivals, 
workshops or other one-off events are not eligible for capital funding. CCTV 
proposals and internal improvements to housing property and works on 
schools where there is no access to the general public are also not eligible. 
Works on private property are not eligible unless there is a long-term 
guarantee of public access or a demonstrable public benefit. 

13
Agenda Item 7



10. The application form invited expressions of interest for the applicants to deliver 
projects themselves. A due diligence exercise to ensure that this is both 
practical and realistic has been undertaken as part of the feasibility process. In 
such cases, the council would give the funding allocation to the applicant in the 
form of a capital grant, with appropriate conditions attached.

Policy implications

11. The CGS programme is fully aligned with the council’s policies around 
sustainability, regeneration and community engagement.

Community impact statement

12. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 
involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils take 
decisions on local matters including environmental improvement and community 
safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that 
affect the area.

13. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The CGS programme is an 
important tool in achieving community participation.

14. In fulfilling the above objectives of community councils to bring together and 
involve Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been 
given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the 
council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 
conduct;

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristics and those who do not share it;

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 
and those that do not share it.

15. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

16. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of:

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic;

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic;

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under- 
represented.

17. Ideas for CGS projects come from the local community, the majority via a simple 
project nomination form available in electronic and paper format.

14



Resource implications

18. The funding for the CGS capital programme from 2011 to 2021 was approved by 
the cabinet and is part of the council's overall capital programme as detailed in 
the Capital Programme 2011–2021 report dated 21 June 2011.

19. The funding for the 2017-18 CGS capital programme was approved by the 
cabinet member for transport environment and recycling as detailed in the 
launch of Cleaner Greener Safer Capital Programme 2015-16 report dated 
August 2014.

20. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital costs of 
the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to organisations, the award 
amount announced at community council includes professional fees. The 
community council award letter to grant recipients details the grant amount only, 
excluding these fees.

21. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding.  Projects 
that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be reported to community 
council and available budgets may be reallocated to other projects. Revenue 
costs not covered by maintenance or the contractual liability period will fall upon 
the asset owner. The department will be notified of the likely costs before the 
schemes proceeds, in order to secure permission to implement the scheme.

22. After the defects and liability period, or three year maintenance period in the 
case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the asset owner, 
for example housing, parks, highways, or in some cases external asset owners. 
Therefore, there are no revenue implications to the highways division as a result 
of approving the proposed allocation. 

23. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored 
and reported on as part of the overall capital programme.

24. Value for money will be ensured when the contract is procured by following the 
council’s contract standing orders.

Consultation 

25. All CGS projects require consultation with stakeholders, including the project 
applicant, local residents, tenants and residents associations and local 
community groups where appropriate.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

26. The allocation of the CGS capital fund is an executive function, delegated by the 
Leader to community councils.

27. Community councils are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the Act and 
executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader.

28. This report is recommending that the Camberwell Community Council approve 

15



the allocation of funds to the individual projects specified at Appendix 1.  The 
power for this function is detailed in Part 3H paragraph 14 of the constitution 
which states that community councils have the power of “approval of the 
allocation of funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and revenue schemes of a 
local nature, using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet”.

29. The cabinet member for transport environment and recycling approved the 
funding for the 2017-2018 programme in August 2014 by exercising his powers 
under Part 3D paragraph 2 of the constitution; and the community council 
approval being sought here is therefore the next constitutional step in the 
process.

30. Community council members also have powers under paragraph 16 of Part 3H 
of the constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the local schemes.

31. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to the 
council’s equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report 
author has demonstrated how those duties need to be considered in the body of 
the report at paragraphs 12 to 17 in the community impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance 

32. This report seeks the approval of the Camberwell Community Council for the 
allocation of funds (£268,571) for the  2017-18 CGS programme in the Camberwell 
Community Council area from the list of applications set out in Appendix 1.

33. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource implications in 
the report that the proposed allocations will be contained within the council’s capital 
programme.

34. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 
recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

16



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Cabinet Report: Capital Programme 
2011–2021 – 21 June 2011

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/documents/s20034/Report%20Capit
al%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street 

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme 2011-21 – 21 June 2011

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%
20General%20Fund%20Capital%20P
rogamme%202011-21.pdf

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

Launch of Cleaner Greener Safer 
Capital Programme 2015/16 - August 
2014
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ie
DecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Camberwell Community Council Cleaner Greener Safer Capital 

programme 2017/18: Applications

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Jason White, Group Manager - Network Development
Report Author Michelle Normanly, Senior Project Manager

Version Final
Dated 18 January 2017

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included

Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 18 January 2017

17

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798


Camberwell Community Council
Cleaner Greener Safer Capital programme 2017/18: Applications

Reference Proposal Name Ward Type of Application
708095 Southwark Tenant and Resident Association Signage Boroughwide Capital & Revenue
707936 BT Box decoration art Boroughwide Capital
689970 Safer Cycles in Southwark Boroughwide Capital
200005 Lets clean up Southwark! Make London a cleaner place! Boroughwide Revenue

703871 Discounted lock scheme and stickers for bike racks for 
SOUTHWARK BOROUGH

Boroughwide Revenue

200033 Recycle Textile Banks All Camberwell Revenue
200088 Southampton Way outdoor gym - top up funding Brunswick Park Capital
200087 Lakanal House Fire Memorial Brunswick Park Capital
200086 The Camberwell Grove Bicycle Hangar Brunswick Park Capital
200076 BT Box decoration art - Grove Lane and Benhill Road Brunswick Park Capital
200066 'Beware of deep water' sign for Benhill Road Nature 

Garden
Brunswick Park Capital

200053 Transforming the recycling area on McNeil Road Brunswick Park Capital
683773 Rainbow Street Bike Hangar Brunswick Park Capital
708077 Brunswick Park T&RA - 2 Bike Hangars Elmington Road 

Part 2 of 3 Street Applications
Brunswick Park Capital

708073 Brunswick Park T&RA - 1 Bike Hangar Ada Road SE5 
Part 3 of 3 Street Applications

Brunswick Park Capital

708034 Brunswick Park T&RA - 2 Bike Hangars Vicarage Grove 
Part 1 of 3 Street Applications

Brunswick Park Capital

707658 Glebe Estate Flower Bed and Border Planting Brunswick Park Capital
688544 Voltaire Precinct Brunswick Park Capital
707284 Restoring the St Giles Railings Brunswick Park Capital
707257 Beetles not Needles Brunswick Park Capital
707186 Shed Removal Brunswick Park Capital

APPENDIX 1
18



Reference Proposal Name Ward Type of Application
706989 TRA Hall Upgrade Brunswick Park Capital
706868 Gilesmead Gardens Brunswick Park Capital
706854 Safer Parking, Cleaner Living Brunswick Park Capital
692422 Mistral Community Garden Expansion Brunswick Park Capital
705758 Celebrating the heritage of the Sceaux Gardens 

Conservation Area
Brunswick Park Capital

703422 Improving the roadway at 34-36 Peckham Road Brunswick Park Capital
702946 Cycle hangars Brunswick Park Capital
702372 Trees and traffic calming for Shenley Road Brunswick Park Capital
702046 Grove Lane - cycle rack / hangar Brunswick Park Capital
700463 Community Cycle Hub Refit Brunswick Park Capital
698808 Cleaner Greener Safer: Theatre Peckham Brunswick Park Capital
200099 Improved lighting on the Poets Corner Estate Camberwell Green Capital
200098 Hanging baskets in Camberwell Camberwell Green Capital
200097 Christmas lights for Camberwell Green Camberwell Green Capital & Revenue
200075 BT Box decoration art - Orpheus Street Camberwell Green Capital
200055 Celebrating Samuel Lewis Trust Residents Camberwell Green Capital
200044 A cleaner, safer and quieter street for John Ruskin 

Primary School and John Ruskin Street residents
Camberwell Green Capital

200034 Safer Notice board Camberwell Green Capital
708183 Planting in Grosvenor Park Camberwell Green Capital
685001 Secure bike storage Elmington Estate Camberwell Green Capital
708075 New Street Lights for Sears Street Camberwell Green Capital
707392 Camberwell Community storage space shelving Camberwell Green Capital
707121 Gardening tools for Gardening Club Camberwell Green Capital
707070 Benhill Road Nature Garden Wildlife notice board Camberwell Green Capital
707066 'Beware of deep water' sign for Benhill Road Nature 

Garden
Camberwell Green Capital

707061 Lakanal House Fire Memorial Camberwell Green Capital
706805 Estate lighting Camberwell Green Capital
706798 Resident Square Camberwell Green Capital
706788 Play area mural Camberwell Green Capital

19



Reference Proposal Name Ward Type of Application
706771 Gardening Club Camberwell Green Capital
706549 CRAWFORD TRA HOMEWORK AFTER SCHOOL CLUB Camberwell Green Revenue

706463 Safer cycling at Camberwell Green Camberwell Green Capital
706422 TABLE TENNIS Camberwell Green Capital
706403 CRAWFORD ESTATE COMMUNITY'S 

HEALTH/OUTDOOR GYM
Camberwell Green Capital

705314 Gating the Artichoke Mews alleyway Camberwell Green Capital
702280 Myatts Field Court Bike Locker Camberwell Green Capital
695359 Bedding for community park and beds Camberwell Green Capital
695376 Raised platforms in people's front gardens to store 

wheelie bins
Camberwell Green Capital

695382 Water butts (water storage) Camberwell Green Capital
695386 Seeds for community allotments Camberwell Green Capital
695388 Outdoor fairy lights for park trees Camberwell Green Capital
695390 Metal planters Camberwell Green Capital
702188 Replacement Pergola for community garden Camberwell Green Capital
702180 Metal anti dog fouling signs Camberwell Green Capital
702103 SYLA Planters and Carpentry project Camberwell Green Capital
696088 Hanging baskets for concrete wall Camberwell Green Capital
696095 Signs for community park Camberwell Green Capital
696105 Woodchip / Mulch and compost Camberwell Green Capital
696129 Street sweeping Camberwell Green Revenue
697489 Planters (large pots) to be placed by bike sheds Camberwell Green Capital
697498 Woodchip and gravel for council front gardens Camberwell Green Capital
697500 Dog mess bag dispensers Camberwell Green Capital
697507 Decoy (fake) cameras for our streets Camberwell Green Capital
700395 Safer Bethwin Camberwell Green Capital
698732 Community Access Camberwell Green Capital
698506 Safer Play area Camberwell Green Capital
679732 Bike hangar, south Bellenden Road, SE15 South Camberwell Capital

20



Reference Proposal Name Ward Type of Application
680362 Improving Green Dale to make walking and cycling safer 

and greener
South Camberwell Capital

681721 The Camberwell Grove Bicycle Hangar South Camberwell Capital
200049 DKHAP Wildlife Garden South Camberwell Capital
200048 Caring for our community through ergonomic seating South Camberwell Capital
200038 Goose Green Roundabout Repair Fund South Camberwell Capital
683493 Stop the fly-tipping in Woodfarrs road South Camberwell Capital
708180 Improving Air Quality at Dog Kennel Hill Primary School South Camberwell Capital

708122 Linwood Close Bike Hangars South Camberwell Capital
708005 Enhancement of Dog Kennel Wood Area South Camberwell Capital
707934 Cycle parking for Morris Court, Denmark Hill Estate 

dylways
South Camberwell Capital

687376 Grove Lane/Champion Park raised bed scheme: 
completion

South Camberwell Capital

707931 Relocate existing Bike Hangar to a "pavement- side" site South Camberwell Capital

707906 Lighting for bicycle hangar South Camberwell Capital
707628 Cleaner hand-washing at the Centre for Wildlife Gardening 

(CWG)
South Camberwell Capital

707387 Environmental Improvements at Dog Kennel Hill Primary 
School

South Camberwell Capital

707198 Pelham Close mini orchard South Camberwell Capital
707129 Bicycle Lockers for block 100-138B Camberwell Grove South Camberwell Capital

706683 The Marsden Road Bike Hangar South Camberwell Capital
706522 Birdsall House garden project South Camberwell Capital
706460 St. Faith's Church & Community Centre bicycle shelter South Camberwell Capital
706051 Bessemer Grange Primary Clean Air Zone South Camberwell Capital & Revenue
705247 Soames Street traffic calming additional funding South Camberwell Capital
703978 Improvements to commercial and domestic refuse storage 

- Grove Lane
South Camberwell Capital

21



Reference Proposal Name Ward Type of Application
703256 Bike hangars on Copleston Road South Camberwell Capital
702527 Dylways bicycles storage /lockers South Camberwell Capital
200015 Signage for Harfield Gardens South Camberwell Capital
695977 Maudsley Hospital community greening project South Camberwell Capital
700813 Estate signage for Denmark Hill and Cleve Hall estates South Camberwell Capital

700669 East Dulwich Estate Nursery Front Small Garden Space South Camberwell Capital

700634 East Dulwich Estate Nursery Garden South Camberwell Capital

22



This page is intentionally blank



 
CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016-17
NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team all amendments/queries to

Tim Murtagh Tel: 020 7525 7187

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

To all Members of the Community 
Council

Councillor Kieron Williams (Chair)                                               
Councillor Octavia Lamb (Vice Chair)
Councillor Radha Burgess                   
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle                                          
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Peter John                                                 
Councillor Sarah King             
Councillor Mark Williams                                                           
Councillor Ian Wingfield                                           

Officers
Tim Murtagh
Constitutional Officer 2nd Floor Hub 2, 
160 Tooley St. 

Grace Semakula, CCDO,
5th Floor Hub 3, 160 Tooley St

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

6

1

Others
Elizabeth Olive, Audit Commission
160 Tooley St.

Total:

Dated: 12 January 2017

1

17


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Cleaner Greener Safer: Funding Reallocation
	Appendix 1

	7 Cleaner Greener Safer Capital Programme 2017-18
	Appendix 1

	 [Comment...]



